
 
Agenda No. 2012–05 March 05, 2012 Page 1 of 3 

FAIRBANKS CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA NO. 2012–05 

REGULAR MEETING March 05, 2012 
FAIRBANKS CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

800 CUSHMAN STREET, FAIRBANKS, ALASKA 

 
 

REGULAR MEETING 
 
 
I 7:00 P.M. 
 
 
1. ROLL CALL 
 
 
2. INVOCATION 
 
 
3. FLAG SALUTATION 
 
 
4. CITIZENS COMMENTS, oral communications to Council on any item not up for Public 

Hearing.  Testimony is limited to five (5) minutes.  Any person wishing to speak needs to 
complete the register located in the hallway.  Normal standards of decorum and courtesy 
should be observed by all speakers.  Remarks should be directed to the City Council as 
a body rather than to any particular Council Member or member of the staff.  In 
consideration of others, kindly silence all cell phone, electronic and messaging devices.  

 
 
5. APPROVAL OF AGENDA AND CONSENT AGENDA 
 

(Approval of Consent Agenda passes all routine items indicated by an asterisk (*).  
Consent Agenda items are not considered separately unless a Council Member so 
requests.  In the event of such a request, the item is returned to the General Agenda). 

 
 
6. APPROVAL OF PREVIOUS MINUTES 
 
 
7. SPECIAL ORDERS 
 

a) The Fairbanks City Council, Sitting as a Committee of the Whole, will hear 
interested citizens concerned with the below-referenced Appeal of 
Denied Application for new Chauffeur License.  Public Testimony will 
be taken and limited to five (5) minutes.   

 
  Applicant: Matthew Robert Hayes 

AGENDA PACKET - March 05, 2012 Page 1 of 68



 
Agenda No. 2012–05 March 05, 2012 Page 2 of 3 

b) The Fairbanks City Council, Sitting as a Committee of the Whole, will hear 
interested citizens concerned with the below-referenced Application for a 
New Liquor License and Restaurant Designation Permit.  Public 
Testimony will be taken and limited to five (5) minutes.   

 New License: 

  License Type:  Beverage Dispensary - Duplicate 
  D.B.A.*:      Lavelle’s Annex, License #5125 
  Licensee/Applicant:   Café de Paris Catering Co. 
  Physical Location:    519 1st Avenue, Fairbanks 

 
c) The Fairbanks City Council, Sitting as a Committee of the Whole, will hear 

interested citizens concerned with the below-referenced Liquor License 
Application for Transfer and Restaurant Designation Permit.  Public 
Testimony will be taken and limited to five (5) minutes.   

 
 Transfer of Ownership: 

 Type: Restaurant Eating Place 
 License: Alaska Salmon Bake, #1639 
 Licensee/Applicant: Malemute, Inc. 
 Physical Location  2300 Airport Way, Fairbanks 

 Current DBA: Alaska Salmon Bake 
 Licensee: Inter Sea, Inc. 
 Location: 2300 Airport Way, Fairbanks 

 
 
8. MAYOR'S COMMENTS AND REPORT 
 
 
9. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 

a) Ordinance No. 5876 – An Ordinance to Amend Chapter 14, 46, and 78, to 
Repeal, Amend, and Clarify Certain Offenses.  Introduced by Mayor 
Cleworth.  SECOND READING AND PUBLIC HEARING.   

 
b) Ordinance No. 5877 – An Ordinance Authorizing a Land Exchange 

Between the Greater Fairbanks Community Hospital Foundation and the 
City of Fairbanks to Facilitate Vacation of 11th Avenue and to Provide 
Parking Adjacent to Fire Station Headquarters.  Introduced by Mayor 
Cleworth.  SECOND READING AND PUBLIC HEARING.   

 
 
10. NEW BUSINESS 
 

*a) Resolution No. 4515 – A Resolution Amending The Schedule of Fees & 
Charges for Services by Adjusting Refuse Collection Rates and Tow Fees.  
Introduced by Mayor Cleworth.   

AGENDA PACKET - March 05, 2012 Page 2 of 68



 
Agenda No. 2012–05 March 05, 2012 Page 3 of 3 

*b) Ordinance No. 5878 – An Ordinance to Amend Chapter 2, Article III, 
Division 8, Landscape Review and Beautification Commission and FGC 
Sections 10-436, 438, 439, and 441 of the Fairbanks Landscape Ordinance.  
Introduced by Mayor Cleworth.   

 
 
11. DISCUSSION ITEMS (INFORMATION AND REPORT)  
 

 Committee Reports 
 

 
12. COMMUNICATIONS TO COUNCIL 
 

 a) Proposed Findings and Conclusions – Board of Adjustment Appeal 
 

*b) Appointment to the Board of Plumber Examiners 
 
 
13. COUNCIL MEMBERS’ COMMENTS 
 
 
14. CITY ATTORNEY’S REPORT 
 
 
15. CITY CLERK’S REPORT 
 
 
16. EXECUTIVE SESSION – IBEW and Fire Fighters Association Labor Negotiations 
 
 
17. ADJOURNMENT 

AGENDA PACKET - March 05, 2012 Page 3 of 68



AGENDA PACKET - March 05, 2012 Page 4 of 68

jjhovenden
Confidential



AGENDA PACKET - March 05, 2012 Page 5 of 68



AGENDA PACKET - March 05, 2012 Page 6 of 68



AGENDA PACKET - March 05, 2012 Page 7 of 68



AGENDA PACKET - March 05, 2012 Page 8 of 68



AGENDA PACKET - March 05, 2012 Page 9 of 68



AGENDA PACKET - March 05, 2012 Page 10 of 68



AGENDA PACKET - March 05, 2012 Page 11 of 68



AGENDA PACKET - March 05, 2012 Page 12 of 68



AGENDA PACKET - March 05, 2012 Page 13 of 68



AGENDA PACKET - March 05, 2012 Page 14 of 68



AGENDA PACKET - March 05, 2012 Page 15 of 68



AGENDA PACKET - March 05, 2012 Page 16 of 68



AGENDA PACKET - March 05, 2012 Page 17 of 68



AGENDA PACKET - March 05, 2012 Page 18 of 68



AGENDA PACKET - March 05, 2012 Page 19 of 68



AGENDA PACKET - March 05, 2012 Page 20 of 68



AGENDA PACKET - March 05, 2012 Page 21 of 68



AGENDA PACKET - March 05, 2012 Page 22 of 68



AGENDA PACKET - March 05, 2012 Page 23 of 68



AGENDA PACKET - March 05, 2012 Page 24 of 68



AGENDA PACKET - March 05, 2012 Page 25 of 68



AGENDA PACKET - March 05, 2012 Page 26 of 68



AGENDA PACKET - March 05, 2012 Page 27 of 68



AGENDA PACKET - March 05, 2012 Page 28 of 68



AGENDA PACKET - March 05, 2012 Page 29 of 68



AGENDA PACKET - March 05, 2012 Page 30 of 68



AGENDA PACKET - March 05, 2012 Page 31 of 68



AGENDA PACKET - March 05, 2012 Page 32 of 68



AGENDA PACKET - March 05, 2012 Page 33 of 68



AGENDA PACKET - March 05, 2012 Page 34 of 68



AGENDA PACKET - March 05, 2012 Page 35 of 68



AGENDA PACKET - March 05, 2012 Page 36 of 68



AGENDA PACKET - March 05, 2012 Page 37 of 68



AGENDA PACKET - March 05, 2012 Page 38 of 68



AGENDA PACKET - March 05, 2012 Page 39 of 68



AGENDA PACKET - March 05, 2012 Page 40 of 68



AGENDA PACKET - March 05, 2012 Page 41 of 68



AGENDA PACKET - March 05, 2012 Page 42 of 68



Sponsored by:  Mayor Cleworth 
Finance Committee Review: February 21, 2012  

Introduced: February 27, 2012 
 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 5876 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND CHAPTERS 14, 46, AND 78 TO REPEAL, 
AMEND, AND CLARIFY CERTAIN OFFENSES  

 
 WHEREAS, certain offenses under the Fairbanks Code that are currently misdemeanors 
could be handled more efficiently and without any detriment to public safety as violations; and 
 
 WHEREAS, certain offenses under the Code are duplicative of offenses found in State 
criminal and traffic statutes; and 
 
 WHEREAS, there are certain ordinances currently in the Fairbanks Code that have 
become outdated or have been held unconstitutional since the time they were first enacted, 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF FAIRBANKS, ALASKA, as follows:   
 
SECTION 1.  That Fairbanks General Code Chapter 14, is amended as follows [new text is in 
bold/underlined font; deleted text is in strike out font]:     
 

 
Sec. 14-171. Illegal Presence 
 
  (a)  A person may not knowingly enter or remain on premises: 
 

(1) In which alcoholic beverages are manufactured, sold, offered for 
sale, possessed for sale or barter, trafficked in or bartered in 
violation of: 

 
 a. AS 04.11.010; 
 b. AS 04.16.090; or  

c. A municipal ordinance adopted under AS 04.21.010(a) or 
(b); or 

 
(2) Licensed under state law during hours in which the person’s 

presence on the premises is a violation of a city ordinance adopted 
under authority of AS 04.16.010(d) providing for hours of closure 
that are outside the hours of closure prescribed by AS 
04.16.010(c).   

 
  (b) A person who violates this section is guilty of a violationmisdemeanor, 
punishable by a maximum fine of $500as provided in section 1-15.   This 
offense is amenable to disposition without court appearance upon payment 

AGENDA PACKET - March 05, 2012 Page 43 of 68



Ordinance No. 5876 
Page 2 

and forfeiture of a bail amount of $150, plus the surcharge imposed by the 
State of Alaska under AS 12.55.039.   
 
Sec. 14-177. Indecent exposure in premises holding any alcohol license.   
 
REPEALED.   

 
SECTION 2.  That Fairbanks General Code Chapter 46 is amended as follows [new text is in 
bold/underlined font; deleted text is in strike out font]:     

 
Sec. 46-4. Penalties. 

*  *  *  *  * 
 

  (c) A person convicted of any of the following offenses shall be punished by a 
fine only of not more than $450.00: 
 

(1) Section 46-43 – Soliciting business on residential premises Section 
46-41(a) – Disorderly Conduct.   

 
 (2) Section 46-42(a) – Disturbing the peace 
 

(3) Section 46-162 – Littering.   
 
 (4) Section 46-137 – Illegal handbilling.   
  
  (d) A person convicted of any of the following offenses shall be punished by a 
fine of not more than $500.00 or by imprisonment for not more than five days or 
both such fine and imprisonment: 
 
 (1) Section 46-41(b) – Disorderly conduct 
 
 (2) Section 46-42(b) – Disturbing the peace 
  

(3) Section 46-80 – Drinking in public 
 
 (3) Section 46-257 – Urinating in public 
 
Sec. 46-41. Disorderly Conduct. 
 
   (a) A person commits the offense of disorderly conduct if he: No person may  
 

(a)  Rrecklessly blocks the entry or exit of any public or private 
building or 

 

AGENDA PACKET - March 05, 2012 Page 44 of 68



Ordinance No. 5876 
Page 3 

(b)  After being informed by a police officer that his conduct is in 
violation of subsection (a), refuses to clear the entry or exit of 
the public or private building.   

 
  (b) No person may recklessly insult, taunt or challenge another person in a 
manner likely to offend or provoke a violent response. 
 
Sec. 46-42. Disturbing the peace. 
 
  (a) A person commits the offense of disturbing the peace if he:   
 

(1) In a public place, repeatedly or continuously shouts, blows a horn, 
plays a musical or recording or amplifying instrument, or 
otherwise generates loud sound or noise with the intent to disturb 
or in reckless disregard of the peace and privacy of others.   

 
(2) In a private place, engages in the conduct described in subsection 

(a)(1) of this section, with the same intent or reckless disregard, 
after having been informed by another that the conduct is 
disturbing the peace and privacy of others not in the same place.   

 
(3) Between the hours of 11:00 p.m. and 7:00 a.m., operates or uses a 

pile driver, pneumatic hammer, bulldozer, road grader, loader, 
power shovel, derrick, backhoe, power saw, manual hammer, 
motorcycle, snow machine or other instrument, appliance or 
vehicle which generates loud sounds or noise, after having been 
informed by another that such operation or use is disturbing the 
peace and privacy of others.   

 
(4) Keeps any dog or other animal which is allowed to engage in 

frequent or prolonged barking or other loud noise-producing 
activity, after having been informed by another that such frequent 
or prolonged barking or noise-producing activity is disturbing the 
peace and privacy of others.   

 
(5) Repeatedly or continuously sounds any horn or other sound-

producing warning device on a motor vehicle when such repeated 
or continued sounding is not necessary to warn of any danger.   

 
  (b) After being informed by a police officer that his conduct is in violation of 
subsection (a), refuses to abate the prohibited activity.   
 
  (c) As used in subsections (a)(1) and (a)(2) of this section: 
 

AGENDA PACKET - March 05, 2012 Page 45 of 68



Ordinance No. 5876 
Page 4 

(1) “Loud sound” in a public place means sound which is loud enough 
to inhibit the ability of a not unduly sensitive person in the same 
place to speak freely without leaving the same place. 

 
(2) “Loud sound” in a private place means sound which is loud 

enough to awaken a not unduly sensitive person in another private 
place.   

 
(3) The inside and outside of buildings and separate residences within 

an apartment house, and separate rooms within a hotel are different 
places.   

 
  (d) As used in subsections (a)(3) and (a)(4) of this section, loud sound or loud 
noise is sound or noise which would awaken, or cause difficulty in sleeping for, 
the average, not unduly sensitive individual attempting to sleep in any house, 
apartment, hotel, motel or other residence in the vicinity of the sound or noise-
producing activity.   
 
  (e) The following sound or noise is not prohibited by this section: 
 

(1) Noise of safety signals, warning devices and emergency pressure 
relief valves when used for their warning of emergency purposes. 

 
(2) Noise produced by any authorized emergency vehicle when 

responding to an emergency call or when otherwise authorized by 
law or ordinance to activate its sirens or other warning devises.   

 
(3) Noises necessarily produced in the course of work required to 

protect persons or property from an imminent peril.  
 
(4) Noise produced by any activity for which a permit has been issued 

pursuant to subsection (ef) of this section.   
 

  (f) Applications for a permit for relief from the application of this section to any 
activity on the basis of undue hardship may be made to the mayor or his duly 
authorized representative.  A non-refundable application fee and a permit fee, as 
set forth in the city’s schedule of fees and charges for services, will be charged for 
the city’s processing of an application.  Any permit granted by the mayor under 
this subsection shall contain all conditions upon which such permit has been 
granted and shall specify a reasonable time that the permit shall be effective.  The 
mayor or duly authorized representative may grant the relief as applied for if he 
finds that:   
 

(1) Additional time is necessary for the applicant to alter or modify his 
activity or operation to comply with this section; or 

 

AGENDA PACKET - March 05, 2012 Page 46 of 68



Ordinance No. 5876 
Page 5 

(2) The activity, operation or noise source will be of a temporary 
duration, and cannot be done in a manner that would comply with 
other paragraphs of this section; and  

 
(3) No other reasonable alternative is available to the applicant.   

 
However, the mayor may prescribe any conditions or requirements he deems 
necessary to minimize adverse effects upon the community or the surrounding 
neighborhood.   
 
Sec. 46-43. Soliciting business on residential premises. 
 
REPEALED.   
 
Sec. 46-76. Sale or transfer of prohibited weapons to minors. 
 
REPEALED.   
 
Sec. 46-78. Issuing a bad check. 
 
REPEALED.   
  
Sec. 46-83. Administrative surcharge, minor misconduct.   
 
REPEALED.   
 
Sec. 46-186. Use of electronically amplified sound systems in motor vehicles.   
 
Is hereby moved from Chapter 46 to Chapter 78, renumbered as FGC Sec. 78-652 
and amended as follows:   
 

Sec. 78-652. Use of electronically amplified sound systems in motor 
vehicles.   

 
  (a) No person operating or in control of a parked or moving motor 
vehicle shall operate or permit the operation of an electronically amplified 
sound system in or on the motor vehicle so as to produce sound that is 
clearly audible more than 50 feet from the motor vehicle.   
 
  (b) Any person violating the provisions of this section shall pay a fine 
civil penalty of $50.00 for the first violation or date of violation, and 
$300.00 for the second and any subsequent violations within six months 
of the first violation, and $1,000.00 for the third violation within one year 
of the first violation.   
 

AGENDA PACKET - March 05, 2012 Page 47 of 68



Ordinance No. 5876 
Page 6 

  (c) Any authorized police officer may issue a citation for any violation 
under this section, except they may arrest for instances when the alleged 
violator refuses to provide the officer with such person’s name and 
address and any proof as may be reasonably available to the alleged 
violator.   
 
(d) The following sound or noise is not prohibited by this section: 
 

(1) Noise of safety signals, warning devices and emergency 
pressure relief valves when used for their warning of 
emergency purposes. 

 
(2) Noise produced by any authorized emergency vehicle when 

responding to an emergency call or when otherwise 
authorized by law or ordinance to activate its sirens or other 
warning devices.   

 
(3) Noises produced by vehicles for the purpose of advertising 

commercial or political messages.   
 

Sec. 46-257. Urinating in public.   
 
  (a)  A person commits the offense of urinating in public if he urinates on any 
portion of a public place not existing for the purpose of receiving urine.   
 
  (b)  A person convicted under this section shall be punished by a fine only if 
the person has not been previously convicted under this section or has only 
been convicted once.  The fine for a first or second offense is $150.00.   
 
  (c)  A person convicted more than two times under this section shall be 
punished by a fine of not more than $500, by imprisonment of not more than 
five days, or both such fine and imprisonment.   
 
Sec. 46-258. Loitering for prostitution.   
 
REPEALED. 
 
Sec. 46-292. Failing to maintain firearm transaction record.   
 
REPEALED. 
  
Sec. 46-294. Possession of a dangerous weapon on school grounds.   
 
REPEALED. 
 
Sec. 46-327. Making a false report of need for emergency assistance.   

AGENDA PACKET - March 05, 2012 Page 48 of 68



Ordinance No. 5876 
Page 7 

 
REPEALED. 
 

SECTION 3.  That Fairbanks General Code Chapter 78, is amended as follows [new text is in 
bold/underlined font; deleted text is in strike out font]:     
 

Sec. 78-611. Reckless driving.   
 
REPEALED. 
 
Sec. 78-613. Failure to yield to police officer.   
 
REPEALED. 
  
Sec. 78-614, 615, 616. Notice of accident.   
 
REPEALED. 
  
Sec. 78-893. Unlawful use of license.   
 
REPEALED. 
 
 

SECTION 4.  That the effective date of this Ordinance shall be the ____ day of March 2012. 
 
 
             
       Jerry Cleworth, City Mayor 
 
AYES:   
NAYS:  
ABSENT:  
ADOPTED:  
 
 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 

       ___________________________ 
Janey Hovenden, CMC, City Clerk   Paul J. Ewers, City Attorney 

AGENDA PACKET - March 05, 2012 Page 49 of 68



   Introduced by: Mayor Cleworth 
Finance Committee Review: February 21, 2012   

        Date:  February 27, 2012  
 
 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 5877  
 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING A LAND EXCHANGE BETWEEN THE 
GREATER FAIRBANKS COMMUNITY HOSPITAL FOUNDATION AND 

THE CITY OF FAIRBANKS TO FACILITATE VACATION OF 11TH 
AVENUE AND TO PROVIDE PARKING ADJACENT TO FIRE STATION 

HEADQUARTERS 
 
 WHEREAS, the City owns the land underlying the streets within the original 
Townsite of Fairbanks by virtue of Deed from the Townsite Trustee; and 

 

 WHEREAS, The Greater Fairbanks Community Hospital Foundation, Inc. 
(GFCHF), seeks to vacate a portion of a City-owned right of way, comprising that 
portion of 11th Avenue lying east of the Noble Street, for the purpose of increased traffic 
safety and parking expansion as shown on “Exhibit A” (attached); and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City seeks to acquire additional land adjacent to the Fire Station 
Headquarters at 1101 Cushman to satisfy a parking shortfall; and  

 

 WHEREAS, GFCHF owns vacant Lot 6A, Block 122, adjoining the Fire Station 
Headquarters; and  

 

 WHEREAS, GFCHF and the City have agreed to a like-kind exchange of lands, 
in which the vacated portion of 11th Avenue will be exchange for a portion of Lot 6A, to 
be created by subdivision, as shown on “Exhibit B” (attached); and  

 

WHEREAS, the Administration has determined that the exchange parcels each 
has a value of approximately $60,000; and  

  

WHEREAS, each party will bear its own costs of survey and administration as 
may be required to effect this exchange; and 

 

 WHEREAS, real estate exchange is unique by nature and not subject to public 
offering; and 

 

 WHEREAS, Fairbanks General Code Section 70-45 Property Exchanges 
authorizes the Council to approve such exchanges when in the judgment of the Council 
it is advantageous for the City to do so, 

 

AGENDA PACKET - March 05, 2012 Page 50 of 68



Ordinance No. 5877 
Page 2 of 2 

 

 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF FAIRBANKS, ALASKA, as follows: 

  

 SECTION 1.  That a Real Estate Purchase and Sale Agreement 
approved by the City Attorney shall be used to set forth the particulars in 
this real estate exchange. 

 

 SECTION 2.  That the Mayor is hereby authorized to execute said 
Agreement and all such other legal documents as may be necessary to 
complete the transaction on behalf of the City. 

 

 SECTION 3.  That conveyance of the property shall be subject to a 
thirty-day permissive referendum period as required under Fairbanks 
General Code of Ordinances Section 70-42, and the City Charter.  

 
 SECTION 4.  That the effective date of this Ordinance shall be the 
12th Day of March 2012. 
 
 
 

                                                                              
                         JERRY CLEWORTH, Mayor 
 
 
AYES:   
NAYS:   
ABSTAIN: 
ABSENT: 
ADOPTED:   
 
 
ATTEST:       APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
                                                                                                                              
JANEY HOVENDEN, CMC, City Clerk   PAUL EWERS, City Attorney  

AGENDA PACKET - March 05, 2012 Page 51 of 68



AGENDA PACKET - March 05, 2012 Page 52 of 68



AGENDA PACKET - March 05, 2012 Page 53 of 68



 Introduced by:  Mayor Jerry Cleworth 
Finance CommitteeReview: February 28, 2012 

 Date: March 05, 2012 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 4515 
 

A RESOLUTION AMENDING THE SCHEDULE OF FEES & CHARGES 
FOR SERVICES BY ADJUSTING REFUSE COLLECTION RATES AND 

TOW FEES 
 
WHEREAS, Ordinance 5744 adopted the City Schedule of Fees & Charges for 

Services to be amended by resolution; section 37 of Ordinance 5744 provided that 
refuse collection rates be adjusted each year to reflect the annual change in the 
Anchorage Consumer Price Index as well as changes in the cost of fuel and tipping fees 
charged by the Fairbanks North Star Borough landfill; and 

 
WHEREAS, the change in the annual consumer price index for 2011 was 3.2 

percent; in addition, landfill tipping fees increased by $7.00/ton, and other costs were 
reviewed and set in 2008; and 

 
WHEREAS, the new towing contract increases the City’s towing expenses for 

vehicle impoundments; and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF FAIRBANKS, ALASKA, to approve the attached amended version of the Schedule 
of Fees and Charges for Services amending the refuse collection rates (rounded to the 
nearest dollar) effective April 1, 2012 and tow fees effective upon approval of this 
Resolution. 

 PASSED and APPROVED this ______ day of ____________ 2012. 
 
 

___________________________ 
Jerry Cleworth, MAYOR 

 
AYES:    
NAYS:   
ABSENT  
APPROVED:  
 
ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM 
 
 
______________________________ _____________________________ 
Janey Hovenden, CMC, City Clerk Paul J. Ewers, City Attorney 

AGENDA PACKET - March 05, 2012 Page 54 of 68



Category Code 
Sec.

Topic Current Fee
Resolution 

4515
Unit

66-42 Refuse Collection Rates* 66.00$      70.00$      Per Quarter Rounded from $70.47

66-43 Senior Discounted  Rate* 49.00$      52.00$      Per Quarter Rounded from $52.12

66-42 
66-69

Oversized Refuse Pickup
28.00$      30.00$      Per Trip Rounded from $30.49

*Current Fee changed from monthly to quarterly for comparability in Resolution 4515

Vehicle 
Impound 

Fees 78-972 Tow Fee 100.00$     135.00$     Flat tow charge

City  of Fairbanks Fee Schedule

Resolution 4515

Refuse 
Collection 

AGENDA PACKET - March 05, 2012 Page 55 of 68



Sponsored by:  Mayor Cleworth  
Introduced: March 5, 2012 

 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 5878 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND CHAPTER 2, ARTICLE III, DIVISION 8, 
LANDSCAPE REVIEW AND BEAUTIFICATION COMMISSION AND 

FGC SECTIONS 10-436, 438, 439, AND 441 OF THE FAIRBANKS 
LANDSCAPE ORDINANCE 

 
 WHEREAS, The Landscape Review and Beautification Commission was established by 
Ordinance No. 5566 in 2004; and 
 
 WHEREAS, that ordinance also created the Landscape Review Board from within the 
Commission’s membership; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Commission has fulfilled its role in preparing a Landscape Manual for 
use by the Building Department; and 
 
 WHEREAS, during Fairbanks’ short construction season, review of landscaping plans 
by the Commission is often not practicable; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the functions of the Landscape Review Board are still valuable and are 
retained within this ordinance under the new name of the Fairbanks Landscape Review and 
Appeals Commission; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the proposed changes to Chapter 2, Art. III, Div. 8 will require amendments 
to related sections of the Fairbanks Landscape Ordinance (FGC Sections 10-435 – 441),  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF FAIRBANKS, ALASKA, as follows:   
 
SECTION 1.  That Fairbanks General Code Chapter 2, Article III, Division 8 Landscape 
Review and Beautification Commission is amended as follows [new text is in bold/underlined 
font; deleted text is in strike out font]:     
 

ARTICLE III.  Boards and Commissions 
 

DIVISION 8. LANDSCAPE REVIEW AND APPEALS BEAUTIFICATION 
COMMISSION   

 
Sec. 2-371. Created. 
 
  (a) There is created a landscape review and appeals beautification commission 
consisting of fivenine members, serving without compensation, to be appointed 
by the mayor subject to confirmation by the city council.   
 
  (b) At least threefive members of the commission shall be residents of the city 
or own property or operate a business within the city limits.  The membership of 

AGENDA PACKET - March 05, 2012 Page 56 of 68



Ordinance No. 5878 
Page 2 

the commission shall consist of a minimum of onethree architects or landscape 
architects and a maximum of foursix lay members interested in civic 
improvements.  The chair shall be elected by and from the commission subject to 
approval by the city council and shall serve in this capacity for one year.  Of the 
nine members first appointed, three shall be appointed for one year, three for two 
years, and three for three years; thereafter, Aappointments to the commission 
shall be for three years except where an interim appointment is necessary to 
complete the term of a commissioner who resigns or dies while in office.   
 
  (c) The city building official shall be an ex officio members of the commission 
without vote.  A secretary, who need not be a commission member, shall also be 
appointed by the members of the commission.   
 
  (d) Five members of the commission shall be appointed to serve as the landscape 
review board with no more than one architect or landscape architect.  Two 
alternates shall be appointed.  The landscape review board shall be nominated by 
the city mayor and confirmed by the city council.  The landscape review board 
shall be available to meet in public upon five days public notice to any matter and 
render a decision.   
 
Sec. 2-372. Meetings. 
 
  (a) The landscape review and beautification commission shall establish rules of 
procedure.  There shall be regular meetings of the commission not less than once 
each calendar quarter which shall be open to the public.  The chair is authorized to 
call special meetings, or a majority of the members may require a special meeting 
to be called.   
 
  (ab) A majority of the commission shall constitute a quorum for the transaction 
of business, and threefive affirmative votes shall be necessary to carry any 
question.   
 
  (bc) The physical attendance of four members of the landscape review board 
constitutes a quorum and three affirmative votes shall be necessary to carry any 
question.  An applicant’s appeal to the landscape review and appeals 
commission board is deemed granted if the commission landscape review board 
does not deny the appeal within ten city working days of submission of the matter 
to the commission landscape review board by the building official.   
 
Sec. 2-373. Records. 
 
  Permanent records, or minutes of meetings of the landscape review and appeals 
beautification commission (“LRBC”), as well as the landscape review board, 
(“LRB”), shall be kept.  The minutes shall promptly be filed in the office of the 
city clerk and shall be open to inspection by any person.   
 

AGENDA PACKET - March 05, 2012 Page 57 of 68



Ordinance No. 5878 
Page 3 

Sec. 2-374. Powers and duties. 
 
  The landscape review and appeals beautification commission shall have the 
duties and be empowered to: 
 

(1) Act when requested in an advisory capacity to the city council on 
urban beautification matters.  The landscape review board is 
granted powers and duties as provided at FGC Sec. 2-375, subject 
to the applicant’s right of appeal to the city council.   

 
(2) Review the proposed plans of federal, state, borough and city 

governments concerning structures, appurtenances or other 
improvements in, upon or adjacent to city property, including city 
streets and sidewalks, in order to make recommendations which 
will make the proposed structures, appurtenances or improvements 
compatible with city beautification plans and aesthetics.   

 
(3) Advise owners of private property in relation to beautification of 

such property when anyone contemplating the erection of any 
building or the making of any improvement submits the plans and 
designs or sketches thereof to the commission for advice and 
suggestions for which no charge shall be made by the commission.   

 
(4) Investigate and make recommendations to the city administration 

and the city council concerning the abatement of public nuisances 
in the city. 

 
(5) Cooperate with other city boards and commissions and the 

borough planning commission to promote plans and programs 
aesthetically compatible with polices and programs of the 
commission.   

 
(6) Help unite citizens toward common goals of civic pride in urban 

beautification. 
 
(7) Submit quarterly reports to the city council concerning its 

activities. 
 

Sec. 2-375. Review. 
 
  (a) Landscape review board.  The landscape review and appeals 
commissionboard shall, within ten city working days of submission, review any 
disputes arising from the building official’s application of the prescriptive design 
method (FGC Sec. 10-438(C)(1)), an applicant’s election to use the professional 
design method (FGC Sec. 10-438(C)(2)), orand an applicant’s election to use the 
alternative compliance method (FGC Sec. 10-438(C)(3)).  Applicants may appeal 
an adverse decision of the landscape review and appeals commissionboard to the 
city council at the next regular meeting of the city council that occurs at least 

AGENDA PACKET - March 05, 2012 Page 58 of 68



Ordinance No. 5878 
Page 4 

seventhree calendar days after a denial by the commissionlandscape review 
board.   
 
  (b) Full landscape review and beautification commission.  The landscape review 
and beautification commission may review:   
 

(1) Any proposed design and location of any structure, appurtenance 
or other improvements erected, or to be erected by the city upon 
property belonging to the city, including the city streets and 
sidewalks. 

 
(2) Any proposed city plan or program which may have an effect on 

the aesthetics of the city.  Any person proposing to extend or alter 
any structure, appurtenance, sign or other device over or upon any 
city street or sidewalk shall submit to the commission for review 
and approval design drawings and plans of the proposal.   

 
  (c) The design of traffic signal or control device need not be submitted if the 
design is determined by state law and cannot be altered or varied consistent with 
such law.   
 
  (d) The commission shall decide any matters submitted to it within 30 days after 
submission unless the commission shall by resolution declare the nature and 
complexity of the proposal submitted requires an additional period of time for 
decision and shall set forth in the resolution the additional period of time needed.   
 
  (e) If the commission fails to decide within the required period of time, its 
recommendations shall be considered unnecessary. 
 
  (f) The commission shall submit all proposed recommendations, plans and 
programs to the mayor for administrative action prior to any city council action 
recommended by the commission.   
 
  (g) The city mayor, with the concurrence of the city council, may remove any 
commission member who has three unexcused absences in any calendar year.  An 
unexcused absence is an absence of which the chair is not notified in advance.   
 

Section 2.  Fairbanks General Code Sections 10-438, 439, and 441 are amended as follows [new 
text bold and underlined font; deleted text in strikeout font]: 
 
 

ARTICLE XV. FAIRBANKS LANDSCAPE ORDINANCE 
 

Sec. 10-436.  Scope and applicability 
 
  A. [Minimum requirements.] The minimum requirements and standards set forth in 
this section shall apply to all public and private, commercial, industrial, religious, 
educational, institutional and multi family uses that are developed or expanded after 

AGENDA PACKET - March 05, 2012 Page 59 of 68



Ordinance No. 5878 
Page 5 

January 1, 2004. For .the purpose of this section, a building which undergoes a change of 
use as defined by the building code, shall comply with this ordinance. If a building 
covered by this ordinance expands its floor area, compliance with this ordinance is 
required on a pro-rata percentage basis, with a 15% minimum compliance, under the 
alternative design method (FGC 1O-438(C)(3)).  The Fairbanks Landscape Ordinance 
shall apply to the construction of a new parking lot, expansion of an existing parking lot 
or a surface improvement to an existing parking lot. The intent of the landscape 
ordinance is to apply to provided parking, whether required by zoning ordinances, or 
provided for any other reason.  Multiple residential buildings located on one lot shall also 
comply with all provisions of the Landscape Ordinance.  
 
  B. Exemptions 
 
 (1) Property with one, two, and three family dwelling units located 
  on individual lots are exempt from the provisions of the Fairbanks 
  Landscape Ordinance. 
 
 (2) Property of which the principle use is the sale of vehicles is not required to 
  comply with the prescriptive method FGC I 0-438(C)(1). 
 
 (3) Property located within the area specified by Borough Code section 

18.50.060(C)(12) (presently described as: First Avenue to Fifth Avenue, 
Noble Street to Barnette Street, and First Avenue to Third Avenue, 
Barnette Street to Wickersham Street, and as may be subsequently 
expanded), provided that, if a new parking lot is constructed within said 
area, compliance shall be with the alternative design method or the 
professional design method (FGC 10-438(C)(2) and (C)(3). The City 
Landscape Manual will provide a map of this region of the City. 

 
  C. Landscape Plan Where a landscape plan is required under this section, the plan 
shall include: 
 

1. The common name of each plant used; 
2. The number, height and diameter of each plant; 
3. The locations where different plant types will be used; 
4. The locations, size and type of vegetation to be preserved in their natural 

state; 
5. Location of any retaining walls and fences; 
6. Location of existing or proposed utilities and easements of record; 
7. Location of all property lines including all streets which border the lot; 
8. Location of any existing or proposed structures or parking areas; 
9. North arrow and scale; 
10. Site drainage and drainage patterns; unless shown on civil drawings 

 
  D. Approved Plant Materials.  The Landscape Review and Beatification Commission 
will adopt and publish a Landscape Manual, which shall include Aa list of approved plant 
and ground cover materials, a map of the area described in Section 10-436(B)(3), and 
general landscaping information, will be set out in a Landscape Manual. The Manual, 

AGENDA PACKET - March 05, 2012 Page 60 of 68



Ordinance No. 5878 
Page 6 

which will be revised as needed by the Landscape Review and Appeals Commission, 
will beand made available at the Building Department and on the Building Department 
web site. 
 
Sec. 10-438.  Landscape design standards. 
 

*  *  *  *  *  * 
 
  C. Technical design standards.  One of the following three design methods shall be 
used to comply with the Fairbanks Landscape Ordinance.   
 

*  *  *  *  *  * 
 

2. Professional Design Method.  A landscape plan, prepared and sealed by a 
licensed landscape architect registered in the State of Alaska, which is 
equivalent to the criteria set forth in section 10-438(C)(1), shall be 
considered as meeting the intent of the landscape ordinance.  All 
Landscape plans which utilize the Professional Design Method shall be 
reviewed and approved by the City of Fairbanks Landscape Review and 
Appeals CommissionBoard, as needed. 

 
3. Alternative Compliance Method.  Project conditions associated with 

individual sites may justify approval of alternative methods of compliance 
with the landscape design requirements.  Conditions may arise where 
normal compliance is impractical or impossible, such as facilities that sell 
vehicles, or where maximum achievement of the City’s objectives and 
goals can only be obtained through alternative compliance.  Such 
Landscape Plans shall be reviewed and approved by the Landscape 
Review and Appeals CommissionBoard on a case-by-case basis. 

 
Sec. 10-439.  Plan submittal and inspection requirements. 
 
  A preliminary landscape plan shall be submitted to the building department in 
conjunction with the required building permit application and related construction 
documents.  A final and complete landscape plan shall be submitted to the building 
department for review and approval before the final inspection is conducted.  A 
certificate of occupancy shall not be issued until all landscaping has been completed by 
the contractor or developer and inspected and approved by the building department or 
Landscape Review and Appeals CommissionBoard.  In the event landscaping is not 
completed due to planting season restrictions, a temporary certificate may be issued but 
shall expire within one year of such certificate. If a temporary certificate of occupancy is 
issued, a performance bond or suitable guaranty shall be posted with the City of 
Fairbanks until such time as the landscaping is completed and approved.  The amount of 
the bond or guaranty shall be equivalent to one percent of the total cost of the 
construction project up to one million dollars or shall be equal to one half of one percent 
of the total construction cost if the total construction costs exceed one million dollars. 
 

AGENDA PACKET - March 05, 2012 Page 61 of 68



Ordinance No. 5878 
Page 7 

Sec. 10-441.  Enforcement, appeals and penalties 
 
1. The City of Fairbanks Building Department in conjunction with the Landscape 
Review and Appeals CommissionBoard shall enforce the requirements of this section 
and shall be responsible for performing the necessary inspections to determine if the 
required landscaping has been installed according to the approved landscape design. 
 
2. A Certificate of Occupancy shall not be issued until the landscape requirements 
are met as shown on the approved landscape design plans and given final approval by 
either the building department or Landscape Review and Appeals CommissionBoard 
unless a performance bond is secured in the amount of the estimated cost of the 
landscaping as approved by the Landscape Review and Appeals CommissionBoard or 
in accordance with section 10-439.  Occupancy of any building prior to the issuance of a 
temporary or final Certificate of Occupancy shall be unlawful. 
 
3. Any applicant denied a building permit or issued a stop work order due to non 
compliance of the landscape ordinance or who wishes to appeal a decision of the building 
official may appeal to the Landscape Review and Appeals CommissionBoard.  The 
appeal shall be made in writing and submitted within one week upon rejection from the 
building official.  If an applicant, owner or developer wishes to appeal a decision of the 
Landscape Review and Appeals CommissionBoard, they shall appeal to the City 
Council acting as a Board of Adjustment.  The appeal shall be in writing and fully state 
the reason or reasons for the appeal.  The appeal shall be accompanied by a copy of the 
landscape design submitted to the Landscape Review and Appeals CommissionBoard. 

 
SECTION 3.  That the effective date of this Ordinance shall be the ____ day of March 2012. 
 
 
             
       Jerry Cleworth, City Mayor 
 
AYES:   
NAYS:  
ABSENT:  
ADOPTED:  
 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 

       ___________________________ 
Janey Hovenden, CMC, City Clerk   Paul J. Ewers, City Attorney 

 

AGENDA PACKET - March 05, 2012 Page 62 of 68



AGENDA PACKET - March 05, 2012 Page 63 of 68



 
ITMO Board of Adjustment Re: Sandstrom 

Page 1 of 3 
 

IN THE MATTER OF:    
 
Board of Adjustment Appeal of 
Administrative Decision Related to 
341 Antoinette Avenue (Sandstrom) 
 
 

DECISION 
 
 Wayne Sandstrom, as trustee of the Bud Sandstrom Family Trust and the Vi Sandstrom 

Family Trust (hereinafter referred to as “Sandstrom”), filed an appeal to the Fairbanks City 

Council, sitting as the Board of Adjustment pursuant to FNSB Code Sec. 18.52.030, appealing a 

zoning decision by the Director of the Borough Department of Community Planning.  [See 

Hearing Packet at page 1-4; references to the record will hereinafter be cited as “HP at ____”].  

The Borough determined that Sandstrom’s use of the property at 341 Antoinette Avenue violated 

the provisions of the Two-Family Residential zoning district [HP at 2-4].  Sandstrom appeals 

from this determination.  

 Summary of Facts  

Sandstrom is the owner of real property located at 341 Antoinette Avenue in the City of 

Fairbanks.  Sandstrom built and located at least nine structures1 on the property.  The record is 

not clear as to when this activity on the property began, but the record shows that a complaint 

was filed with the Borough on July 9, 2010 [HP at 109].  A “stop work order” was issued by the 

City of Fairbanks Building Official on August 20, 2010.  According to the Building Official, in 

his letter to Sandstrom dated May 26, 2011, the stop work order was issued because:  

1) required plans for the cabins had not been submitted for review and approval; 

2) required permits had not been secured; 

                                                            
1 While these structures look like small cabins [HP at 10-13], Sandstrom objects to that characterization.  He refers 
to them as “sleeping-only rooms” [HP at 131] or as “accessory buildings for sleeping rooms” [HP at 178].    

AGENDA PACKET - March 05, 2012 Page 64 of 68



 
ITMO Board of Adjustment Re: Sandstrom 

Page 2 of 3 
 

3) required inspections had not been conducted; 

4) required water and sewer facilities had not been provided for each of the residential 
    cabins; and  
 
5) the multiple cabins are in violation of current zoning regulations” [HP at 109].    

The Building Official also noted subsequent to the original posting of the stop work order, 

“construction has continued” [HP at 109].2  

In a letter to the Borough dated November 22, 2010, Sandstrom described the structures 

on his lot as follows:   

I have two bona fide dwellings on my lot.  One is a small one bedroom dwelling 
that I and my companion live in and the other is a bed and breakfast compendium 
that is comprised of a log dwelling with one (1) bedroom, a kitchen, a general 
purpose room, and an expanded bath area; supplemented with seven (7) sleeping-
only rooms (no cooking or toilet facilities). [HP at 131].    
 

Summary of Argument 

Sandstrom’s position is that he established a bed and breakfast operation on the property, 

which is allowed in the Two-Family Residential zone.  He argues that the nine structures are 

accessory buildings for sleeping rooms.  The Borough Department of Community Planning held 

that while a “bed & breakfast residence” was a permitted use in the Two-Family Residential 

zone, the guestrooms must be located within a single structure for the following reasons: 

1. The property locate at 341 Antoinette is located within Two-Family Residential 
zoning district. 

 
2. Residential use and bed and breakfast uses are permitted uses in the Two-Family 

zone. 
 
 3. Only one principle [sic] building is permitted in the Two-Family zone. 
 

                                                            
2 The violation of the stop work order was also reported in a letter to Mayor Hopkins from Sandstrom’s neighbor 
Terry Cochrane (“Thirty minutes after the order was served, work continued on the laundry building.  At the time of 
the complaint, there were six (6) dry cabins.  There are now nine (9) cabins.  The cabins are fabricated in the large 
shop then rolled out and placed on gravel pads around the property”) [HP at 107].   

AGENDA PACKET - March 05, 2012 Page 65 of 68



 
ITMO Board of Adjustment Re: Sandstrom 

Page 3 of 3 
 

4. Residential use or a bed and breakfast residence use makes the building a 
principal building; 

 
5. More than one principal building on a lot within the Two-Family zone is not 

permitted; 
 

6. Residential sleeping quarters either for residential or bed and breakfast uses in 
individual buildings are not accessory buildings because they are principal 
buildings [HP at 3-4].   

 
 Findings and Conclusions 

 The Two-Family Residential zoning district provides for “medium density residential 

development and other uses which maintain the medium density residential nature of the district 

in areas where community sewer and water systems are available” [FNSB Code Sec. 18.24.010; 

HP at 42].  In this zoning district, not more than one principal building may be located on one lot 

[FNSB Code Sec. 18.50.020A; HP at 44].   

 Located on the property at 341 Antoinette Avenue Street were: a one bedroom dwelling 

(Sandstrom’s residence), a one bedroom dwelling (that included a kitchen, a general purpose 

room, and an expanded bath area), nine3 cabins, and a garage (where the cabins were 

constructed).  The Borough correctly determined that these cabin/buildings were not “rooms.”  

The Borough was also correct in rejecting Sandstrom’s attempt to label these structures 

“accessory buildings” in order to avoid the building limit of the FNSB Code Sec. 18.50.020A.   

 After consideration of the record on appeal and for the reasons stated above, the Council, 

acting as the Board of Adjustment, finds that Sandstrom’s use of the property located at 341 

Antoinette Avenue violated the restrictions of the Two-Family Residential zone, and therefore, 

his appeal is denied.   

                                                            
3 Sandstrom’s brief [HP at 181] indicates that he moved all but four of these structures from the property.   

AGENDA PACKET - March 05, 2012 Page 66 of 68



AGENDA PACKET - March 05, 2012 Page 67 of 68



AGENDA PACKET - March 05, 2012 Page 68 of 68


	AGENDA - March 05, 2012
	SPECIAL ORDERS
	Chauffeur Appeal - Matthew Hayes
	New Liquor License - Lavelle's Annex
	Transfer Liquor License - Alaska Salmon Bake

	UNFINISHED BUSINESS
	Ordinance No. 5876
	Ordinance No. 5877

	NEW BUSINESS
	Resolution No. 4515
	Ordinance No. 5878

	COMMUNICATIONS TO COUNCIL
	Proposed Findings & Conclusions - BOA
	Appointment to Board of Plumber Examiners




